

Sec. 2. Section 321L.4, subsection 2, Code 1991, is amended to read as follows:

2. The use of a handicapped parking space, located on either public or private property as provided in sections 321L.5 and 321L.6, by a motor vehicle not displaying a handicapped identification device; by a motor vehicle displaying such a device but not being used by a handicapped person, as an operator or passenger; or by a motor vehicle in violation of the rules adopted by the department under section 321L.8, constitutes improper use of a handicapped identification device which is a misdemeanor for which a fine shall be imposed upon the owner, operator, or lessee of the motor vehicle or the purchaser of the handicapped identification device. The fine for each violation shall be ~~twenty-five~~ fifty dollars. Proof of conviction of two or more violations involving improper use of a handicapped identification device is grounds for revocation by the court or the department of the holder's privilege to possess or use the device.

Sec. 3. Section 805.8, subsection 2, paragraph a, Code 1991, is amended to read as follows:

a. For parking violations under sections 321.236, 321.239, 321.358, 321.360, and 321.361, the scheduled fine is five dollars. The scheduled fine for a parking violation of section 321.236 increases in an amount up to ten dollars, as authorized by ordinance pursuant to section 321.236, subsection 1, paragraph "a", if the parking violation is not paid within thirty days of the date upon which the violation occurred. For purposes of calculating the unsecured appearance bond required under section 805.6, the scheduled fine shall be five dollars. However, violations charged by a city or county upon simple notice of a fine instead of a uniform citation and complaint as permitted by section 321.236, subsection 1, paragraph "a", are not scheduled violations, and this section shall not apply to any offense charged in that manner. For a parking violation under section 111.38 or 321.362 the scheduled fine is ten dollars. For a parking violation under section 321L.4, subsection 2, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty-five~~ fifty dollars.

Approved April 22, 1992

CHAPTER 1123

STATE MANDATES

H.F. 2463

AN ACT relating to state mandates.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. Section 25B.3, subsection 2, Code 1991, is amended to read as follows:

2. "State mandate" means a statutory requirement ~~enacted after January 1, 1984, or appropriation~~ which requires a political subdivision of the state to establish, expand, or modify its activities in a manner which necessitates additional annual expenditures of local revenue of at least one hundred thousand dollars, or additional expenditures of local revenue within five years of enactment of five hundred thousand dollars or more, excluding an order issued by a court of this state.

Sec. 2. Section 25B.5, Code 1991, is amended to read as follows:

25B.5 ESTIMATION — PROCEDURES.

1. When a bill or joint resolution is requested, the legislative service bureau shall make an initial determination of whether the bill or joint resolution ~~will~~ may impose a state mandate. If a state mandate is may included, ~~the~~ that fact shall be included in the explanation of the bill or joint resolution.

2. If a bill or joint resolution ~~contains~~ may include a state mandate, a copy of the prepared draft shall be sent to the legislative fiscal bureau which shall determine if the bill or joint

resolution contains a state mandate. If the bill or joint resolution contains a state mandate and is still eligible for consideration during the legislative session for which the bill or joint resolution was drafted, the legislative fiscal bureau shall prepare an estimate of the amount of costs imposed.

3. If a bill or joint resolution containing a state mandate is enacted, unless the estimate already on file with the house of origin is sufficient, the legislative fiscal bureau shall prepare a final estimate of additional local revenue expenditures required by the state mandate and file the estimate with the secretary of state for inclusion with the official copy of the bill or resolution to which it applies. A notation of the filing of the estimate shall be made in the Acts of the general assembly published pursuant to chapter 14.

Sec. 3. Section 14.10, Code Supplement 1991, is amended by adding the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 7. A notation of the filing of an estimate of a state mandate prepared by the legislative fiscal bureau pursuant to section 25B.5 shall be included in the session laws with the text of an enacted bill or joint resolution containing the state mandate.

Approved April 22, 1992

CHAPTER 1124

JUVENILE COURT

S.F. 2040

AN ACT relating to changing the title "juvenile court referee" to "associate juvenile judge" and to the appeal of associate juvenile judge orders, findings, and decisions.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. Section 125.75A, Code 1991, is amended to read as follows:

125.75A INVOLUNTARY COMMITMENT OR TREATMENT OF MINORS — JURISDICTION.

The juvenile court has exclusive original jurisdiction in proceedings concerning a minor for whom an application for involuntary commitment or treatment is filed under section 125.75. In proceedings under this division concerning a minor's involuntary commitment or treatment, the terms term "court", "judge", "~~referee~~", or "clerk" mean the juvenile court, judge, ~~referee~~, or clerk.

Sec. 2. Section 229.6A, subsection 1, Code 1991, is amended to read as follows:

1. Notwithstanding section 229.11, the juvenile court has exclusive original jurisdiction in proceedings concerning a minor for whom an application for involuntary admission is filed under section 229.6 or for whom an application for voluntary admission is made under section 229.2, subsection 1, to which the minor objects. In proceedings under this chapter concerning a minor, notwithstanding section 229.11, the terms term "court", "judge", "~~referee~~", or "clerk" mean the juvenile court, judge, ~~referee~~, or clerk.

Sec. 3. Section 331.754, subsection 2, Code 1991, is amended to read as follows:

2. The acting county attorney shall receive a reasonable compensation as determined by the board for services rendered in proceedings before a judicial magistrate or rendered on behalf of a county officer or employee. If the proceedings are held before a district associate judge or a district judge, the judge shall determine a reasonable compensation for the acting county attorney. If the proceedings are held before a ~~juvenile court referee~~ an associate juvenile judge or a judicial hospitalization referee, the acting county attorney shall be compensated